
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ESG FRAMEWORK FOR BUSINESS ASSOCIATES  



Tata Power’s Sustainability philosophy sits at the core of its Business Strategy. Tata Power 
Sustainability Model has an overarching objective of ‘Leadership with care’ with key elements 
of ‘Care for the Environment’; ‘Care for the Community’; ‘Care for our Customers / 
Partners’ and ‘Care for our People’. These sustainability objectives encompass the 
Environmental, Social and Governance objectives driven as integrated elements. 
 
Tata Power, together with its stakeholders is determined to achieve sustainable growth while 
creating shared value for all.  
As a part of future ready roadmap, Tata Power has targeted following as our Environment, 
Social and Governance priorities: 
  

 Being Carbon Net Zero before 2045  
 Growing Clean capacity (80% by 2030)  
 Customer centricity 
 Becoming water neutral before 2030  
 Achieving zero waste to landfill before 2030  
 No net loss of biodiversity before 2030   
 Positively impacting 80 million lives by 2027  

 
In order to create a sustainable business ecosystem, Tata Power expects that all its Business 
Associates (BA) which includes its suppliers, vendors, consultants and service providers to 
align to its ESG and sustainability commitments. 
 
Tata Power encourages improved efficiencies and scaling up of green initiatives through 
technology and innovation taking us farther on the journey of reducing carbon emissions and 
preparing the entire eco-system towards products and services that would have net positive 
impact on the environment and communities that we operate in. 
 
The Vendors/ bidders wishing to associate with Tata Power are expected to share their own 
sustainability and ESG journey. We at Tata Power promote all Business Associates to have a 
sustainable procurement policy for their supplier and service providers to contribute to our 
integrated approach in achieving a sustainable supply chain. The BA is encouraged to carry 
out the assessment of their sub-contractors and sub-vendors on  sustainability readiness so 
that they are aware of the expectation/ business requirement. 
 
The Vendor/ Bidder shall fill-in the ‘Environment, Social and Governance Compliance 
Screening Questionnaire for Business Associates’ attached at Annexure-I and submit the 
same along with the Bid in Ariba online platform. 
 

Responsible Supply Chain Management: 
 
Tata Power is committed for a cleaner environment and respect of Human rights through its 
Responsible Supply Chain Management policy.  
Tata Power Business Associate (BA) shall comply with all the environment & Human rights 
related laws, including emission norms, Labour and environmental regulations.  
 

 

Tata Power encourages its BA to focus on green design, green supply, green production, 
green logistics and green packaging in performing their business obligations. The BA is 
expected to abide by the Tata Power Corporate Environment policy, Energy Conservation and 
Corporate Sustainability Policy (enclosed with this document as Annexure-II). 



The BA is expected to: 
 Strive towards Conservation of Energy, Water, Resources and optimize transportation 

of Men & Materials to minimize environmental impact and reduce carbon footprint. 
 Carry out the assessment of materials used for construction, operation & 

maintenance, consumables and accordingly phase out those materials which are 
environmentally hazardous. 

 Be cognizant that diversity in the workplace positively impacts business. 
 Promote affirmative action by supporting people from SC/ ST background by engaging 

workforce from SC/ ST community under the contracts agreed herein. 
 Share the commitment of ‘No child labour’, ‘No forced labour’, Non-discrimination on 

the basis of caste, colour, religion, gender, disability, maternity or pregnancy or any 
other factor unrelated to the requirements of the job 

 Pay the wages or remuneration to the workforce, personnel deployed in compliance 
to all applicable laws and regulations.  

 Provide its employees/ deployed labor with an employment environment that is free 
of physical or psychological harassment. 

 Carry out the assessment of their Sub-contractors on their Sustainability Readiness 
so that they are aware of the above expectation/ standards 

 To ensure usage of suitable package material which is more environmentally 
sustainable. Further the packing material shall be recycled to the extent possible. The 
material used for packing is expected to suit the mode of transport and to ensure its 
safe receipt at point of delivery.  
 

 
 
Waste Disposal: 
The BA is expected to follow best practices for disposal of waste, few of which are listed below:  
 

 Have a detailed project plan that includes the waste management, segregation of all 
designated waste material (Recyclable/ Non-Recyclable), collecting, storing, 
disposing and transferring the same to pre-arranged facility/ destination in timely and 
safe manner as per environmental legislations. The project plan shall also include the 
innovative construction practice to eliminate or minimize waste, protect 
surface/ground water, control dust and other emissions to air and control noise. 

 Have purchase policy to encourage the procurement of material with recycled and 
minimum packaging of goods during delivery and appropriate means for site-to-site 
transportation of materials to avoid damage and litter generation.   

 Ensure that the residents living near the site are kept informed about proposed 
working schedule and timings/ duration of any abnormal noise full activity that is likely 
to happen.  

 Ensure the regular maintenance and monitoring of vehicles and equipment for 
efficient fuel use so that emissions and noise are within acceptable limits to avoid air 
pollution.  

 

Water Management: 
 
The BA is expected to follow best practices for water management, few of which include a 
management and monitoring system for water withdrawals and consumption, procedures to 
reduce water usage or reuse/recycle water, and pretreatment of wastewater before disposal.  
 



 
Compliance to Law: 
The BA shall adhere to responsible business practices and comply with the provision of all the 
Statutory Acts Applicable. Special attention of the BA is drawn towards the compliance of 
provision of the following statues: (along with the latest amendments/additions, as applicable): 
 

 The Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) ACT, 1986. 
 The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) ACT, 1970. 
 The Employee's Pension Scheme, 1995. 
 The Employee's Provident Funds and miscellaneous provisions Act, 1952. 
 The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948. 
 The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976. 
 The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947. 
 The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. 
 The Minimum Wages Act, 1948. 
 The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 
 The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. 
 The Payment of Wages Act, 1936. 
 The Shops & Establishment Act, 1954. 
 The Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923. 
 The Employer's Liability Act, 1938. 
 and any other applicable statutory act 

 
Social Accountability (SA 8000):  
 
Tata Power expects its BAs to follow guidelines of SA 8000:2014 on the following aspects 

 Child Labour 
 Forced or Compulsory Labour 
 Health & Safety 
 Freedom of Association & Right to Collective Bargaining 
 Discrimination 
 Disciplinary Practices 
 Working Hours 
 Remuneration 
 Management System 

 
Health and Safety 
 
The BA is expected to ensure the health and safety of his and his Sub-contractor’s staff and 
labour. The BA shall, in collaboration with and according to the requirements of the local health 
authorities, ensure that medical staff, first aid facilities, sick bay and ambulance service are 
available at the accommodation and on the Site at all times, and that suitable arrangements 
are made for all necessary welfare and hygiene requirements and for the prevention of 
epidemics. The BA shall maintain records and make reports concerning health, safety and 
welfare of persons deployed, and damage to property, as the Owner’s Representative may 
reasonably require. The BA shall be responsible for the medical treatment / hospitalization of 
his and his Sub-contractor’s staff/ labour. 
 
The BA shall appoint a qualified Safety officer at the Site to be responsible for maintaining the 
safety, and protection against accidents, of all personnel on the Site. Such Safety officer shall 
have the authority to issue instructions and take protective measures to prevent accidents.  
 



The BA shall comply in toto with the Tata Power’s Contractor Safety Terms & Conditions, 
Health Safety & Environment Manual while working on Tata Power Site/ Services/ Contracts. 
 
 
Grievance Mechanism 
 
The BA is expected to have grievance procedures that allow stakeholders to anonymously 
bring environmental and/or work-related violations and/or concerns to the attention of 
management. In addition, the BA is expected to have procedures for examining reports of 
environmental and/or work-related violations or concerns and/or privacy complaints. 
 
Data Protection  
 
The BA is expected to have a formal process to address data security or privacy issues. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE-I 



 
 

 

Signature 
 
Business Associate Name 

Sr. No. Question Description Response (Y/N) Remarks 
Organization  

1 
Does your Company have Sustainability Policy at Organization Level?  
If Yes, Please attach 

    

2 
Do you have sustainable procurement policy in place for your own suppliers?  If Yes, 
Please attach 

    

3 Does your company do regular assessment of its suppliers on ESG parameters?     

4 Are there ESG risks, or negative impacts identified in your supply chain     

Governance 

1 
Is diversity taken into consideration when appointing board members/ senior management? 
Do you have an independent director/s?      

2 
Has your company taken initiatives to ensure ethical practices at workplace?  
Please share the details, Policies etc.     

3 
Does your company have a formal process to address data security or privacy issues?  
Please share the details, Policies etc.   

4 
Does your company have grievance mechanism for stakeholder issues and track 
resolution?    

Environment/ Planet 

1 Does your company have Environmental Policy? If Yes, Please attach     

2 
Do you have a formal process for waste management including solid wastes, liquid wastes 
and hazardous waste?     

3 
Does your company track greenhouse gas emission? Also, what percentage of own 
consumption comes from the renewable energy?     

4 
Does your company have a formal process for water management including monitoring of 
water consumption and withdrawals, and if applicable, pretreatment of wastewater?   

Green Technology/ Innovation 

1 
Are your facility/ Product/ Services provided by you is based on green design, green 
production, green packaging or green logistics considerations? Please elaborate.     

2 
Do your products or services have any environmental or social features or benefits (e.g. 
environmental/energy certification, ecolabels, fair trade certification, etc.)?     

Social/ People 

1 
Does you facility/ Company have written personnel policies in place Are you an equal 
opportunity employer?     

2 
Please describe any formal programme / campaign in place to promote company 
involvement with the community (volunteering, etc.).  What is the percentage of profit spend 
on community activities?  

  

3 
Does your company have a written Health & Safety Policy or Program?  If Yes, Please  
attach 

  

Certifications: Does your company have following certifications (valid till date-please mention validity) 

1 ISO9001 accreditation   

2 SA8000 or equivalent   

3 ISO 14001 certification   

4 ISO 18001/45001 or equivalent   

5 ISO/IEC 27001 or equivalent   

6 Any Other (Please specify)   



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANNEXURE-II 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 


